

1 BYLAWS OF THE NEVADA REPUBLICAN PARTY
2 (As amended September 23, 2023)
3

4 ARTICLE 1: NAME OF THE ORGANIZATION

5 The name of this organization shall be the NEVADA REPUBLICAN PARTY, (hereinafter referred to
6 as the NVGOP), which shall be governed by the Nevada Republican Central Committee
7 (hereinafter referred to as the NRCC) under the direction and leadership of the NVGOP Officers
8 and Executive Committee.
9

10
11 ARTICLE 2: PURPOSE

12 The purpose of this organization shall be as follows:
13

- 14 1. To act as the sole affiliate of the Republican National Committee (hereinafter referred to
15 as the RNC) in the state of Nevada.
16
- 17 2. To recruit, develop, and elect representative government at the national, state, and
18 local levels.
19
- 20 3. To promote sound, honest, and representative government at the national, state, and
21 local levels.
22
- 23 4. To preserve and protect the dignity, rights, freedom, and liberty of the individual citizen.
24
- 25 5. To protect the Republican brand by recruiting, training, and promoting candidates for
26 office who will uphold the NVGOP platform, and the political policies supported by its
27 membership.
28
- 29 6. To provide leadership, guidance, and support for all affiliated county Republican central
30 committees / county Republican parties within the state of Nevada.
31

32
33 ARTICLE 3: DUTIES AND HEADQUARTERS

34
35 Section 1. The general supervision, regulation and direction of the Nevada Republican
36 Party shall be vested in the NRCC, subject in the following order of priority to:

- 37 A. The Rules of the Republican National Committee.
- 38 B. These Bylaws.

39 C. The provisions of the Nevada Revised Statutes not in conflict with the foregoing.

40

41 Section 2. The NRCC shall set the time and place and issue the call for the State
42 Convention, which shall be held within Clark County in all gubernatorial years and within one of
43 the remaining sixteen counties in all presidential years; and issue the call for the Congressional
44 district conventions in presidential years during which multi-county district convention shall be
45 held in concert with the State Convention. There shall be no fractional voting from any county
46 at any State Committee meeting, State Convention or any Congressional district caucus or
47 convention.

48

49 Section 3. The NRCC shall establish and maintain its principal office in such locations as
50 may be selected from time to time by the Chairman with the concurrence of the Central
51 Committee. Other offices may be established as needed.

52

53 Section 4. The Executive Director shall have authority to hire and fire all office
54 personnel, with the prior approval of the Personnel Committee, obtained at a conference call or
55 meeting of the personnel committee.

56

57

58 ARTICLE 4: OFFICERS

59 The following positions shall serve concurrently as the elected officers of the NVGOP and NRCC
60 and shall have the following authority, duties, and requirements:

61

62 1. Chairman. The Chairman shall have the following duties and requirements:

63 A. Shall serve for a term of four (4) years upon election or until a successor is elected.

64 B. Serve as the chief executive officer of the NVGOP, NRCC, and Executive Committee.

65 C. Act as the presiding officer at all meetings of the NRCC and Executive Committee
66 and as the Temporary Chair of the NVGOP Convention.

67 D. Serve as a voting member of the Executive Committee and as a voting member of all
68 standing committees.

69 E. Appoint the Chairmen of all Standing Committees established in these Bylaws
70 subject to confirmation by the Executive Committee.

71 F. Execute the policies established by the NVGOP, the NRCC, and the Executive
72 Committee.

73 G. Act as a signatory on checks or other payments issued by the NVGOP in conjunction
74 with the signature of the Treasurer or other authorized officer when required.

75 H. Serve as a member of the Republican National Committee representing Nevada.

76 I. Keep the Executive Committee advised of the activities and progress of the party.

77
78
79
80
81
82
83
84
85
86
87
88
89
90
91
92
93
94
95
96
97
98
99
100
101
102
103
104
105
106
107
108
109
110
111
112
113
114

2. Vice-Chairman. The Vice Chairman shall have the following duties and requirements:
 - A. Shall serve for a term of four (4) years upon election or until a successor is elected.
 - B. Serve as the deputy-chief executive officer of the NVGOP, NRCC, and Executive Committee.
 - C. Shall assist the Chairman in the duties of his office.
 - D. Act as the presiding officer at all meetings of the NRCC and Executive Committee and as the Temporary Chair of the NVGOP Convention in the absence of the Chairman or at the Chairman's Request.
 - E. Execute the policies established by the NVGOP, the NRCC, and the Executive Committee.
 - F. Advise and assist the counties to ensure that precinct meetings and county conventions are held in accordance with these bylaws and the NVGOP Standing Rules.
 - G. Advise and assist the counties to ensure that precincts are properly manned for voter canvassing, voter registration, voter turnout, and resolving election day challenges.
 - H. Act as a signatory on checks or other payments issued by the NVGOP in conjunction with the signature of the Treasurer or other authorized officer when required.
 - I. Serve as a voting member of the Executive Committee.
 - J. Keep the Executive Committee informed of his activities.

3. Secretary. The Secretary shall have the following duties and requirements:
 - A. Shall serve for a term of four (4) years upon election or until a successor is elected.
 - B. Shall act as the chief administrative officer of the NVGOP, NRCC, and the Executive Committee.
 - C. Keep minutes of all meetings of the NVGOP Convention, NRCC, and Executive Committee.
 - D. Deliver a copy of all meeting minutes to the Chairman within thirty (30) days of the meeting, and upon review, make a copy of the minutes available to each member of the Convention, NRCC, or Executive committee, respectively, no later than the call of the next regular meeting or Convention.
 - E. Keep a current list of all members of the NRCC and Executive Committee.
 - F. Act as a signatory on checks or other payments issued by the NVGOP in conjunction with the signature of the Treasurer or other authorized officer when required.
 - G. Distribute a roster of all current members of the NRCC and the Executive Committee to each NRCC member no later than the first regular meeting following a State Convention and at least annually thereafter.

- 115 H. Serve as a voting member of the Executive Committee.
116
- 117 4. Treasurer. The Treasurer shall have the following duties and requirements:
118 A. Shall serve for a term of four (4) years upon election or until a successor is elected.
119 B. Shall act as the chief financial officer of the NVGOP and NRCC.
120 C. Act as the custodian of all financial assets of the NVGOP and NRCC.
121 D. Pay expenses only in compliance with the NVGOP budget, excepting payments
122 specifically approved by the Chairman.
123 E. Keep a strict accounting of all revenues and expenses in accordance with generally
124 accepted accounting practices, and make those records accessible to the Chairman,
125 Executive Committee, and all members of the NRCC upon request.
126 F. File all statements, reports, and disclosures as required by Federal and State laws in
127 a timely manner.
128 G. Act as the primary signatory on checks or other payments issued by the NVGOP in
129 conjunction with another authorized Officer when required.
130 H. Provide the NRCC and Executive Committee with current financial reports at each of
131 their respective regular meetings and furnish an updated report to the Executive
132 Committee should there be any significant changes in financial condition between
133 Executive Committee meetings.
134 I. Obtain a bond at the expense of the NVGOP with sufficient security to satisfy its
135 requirements.
136 J. Convey all financial assets and accounting records of the NVGOP and NRCC to their
137 successor at the conclusion of their service as Treasurer and provide for any audit of
138 those records requested by the Executive Committee.
139 K. Serve as a voting member of the Executive Committee.
140 L. Issue checks or other payments in accordance with the following guidelines:
141 i. Any check or other payment issued in an amount less than \$1000 shall require
142 the signature or other equivalent authorization of at least one of the following
143 Executive Committee members: the Chairman, Vice-Chairman, Secretary,
144 Treasurer, or Assistant Treasurer.
145 ii. Any check or other payment issued in an amount of \$1000 or greater shall
146 require the signature or other equivalent authorization of two (2) of the
147 following Executive Committee members: the Chairman, Vice-Chairman,
148 Secretary, Treasurer, or Assistant Treasurer.
149 iii. Payroll checks prepared by a payroll service shall be exempt from the above
150 limits and requirements and may be signed utilizing a facsimile of the Treasurer's
151 signature only. Manually prepared payroll checks shall be subject to the same
152 limits and requirements outlined above.

153
154
155
156
157
158
159
160
161
162
163
164
165
166
167
168
169
170
171
172
173
174
175
176
177
178
179
180
181
182
183
184
185
186
187
188
189
190

5. National Committeeman and National Committeewoman. The National Committeeman and National Committeewoman shall have the following duties and requirements:
 - A. Shall serve for a term of four (4) years upon their ratification at the RNC National Convention or until their successor(s) are elected and confirmed by the RNC.
 - B. Shall serve as members of the Republican National Committee representing Nevada.
 - C. Shall serve as voting members of the Executive Committee.

6. Appointed Officers: Assistant Treasurer, General Counsel, and Parliamentarian. The Assistant Treasurer, General Counsel, and Parliamentarian shall have the following duties and requirements:
 - A. Shall be appointed by the Chairman with the approval of the voting members of the Executive Committee.
 - B. Shall serve as non-voting members of the Executive Committee.
 - C. Shall assume other duties as defined in the NVGOP Standing Rules.

7. All officers must be registered Republican Nevada electors when nominated, elected, and at all times while serving.

ARTICLE 5: EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The following officers and other NRCC members shall serve concurrently as the Executive Committee of the NVGOP and NRCC and shall have the following authority and duties:

1. The voting members of the Executive Committee shall be:
 - A. The Chairman, Vice Chairman, Secretary, Treasurer, National Committeeman, National Committeewoman, President of the Nevada Federation of Republican Women, and the Chairmen of the Budget and Finance Committees.
 - B. One representative elected by the NRCC members from Clark County, one representative elected by the NRCC members from Washoe County, and the Chairman of the Rural Counties Caucus, who shall be elected by the NRCC members from the remaining fifteen (15) counties combined.

2. The non-voting members of the Executive Committee shall be the Assistant Treasurer, General Counsel, Parliamentarian, the Chairmen of the Bylaws, Nominating and Candidate Recruitment, and Credentials Standing Committees.

3. The duties of the Executive Committee shall be:

- 191 A. To assist the Chairman in the formation of the policies necessary for the
192 management of the NVGOP and NRCC.
193 B. To hear and resolve organizational controversies and disputes, subject to review by
194 the NRCC.
195 C. To determine the date, time, and location of meetings of the NRCC, and to
196 recommend to the NRCC the date, time, and location of the NVGOP State
197 Convention.
198 D. To conduct the necessary business of the NVGOP between membership meetings.
199
200 4. Members of the Executive Committee must be registered Republican Nevada electors at
201 all times while serving.
202
203

204 ARTICLE 6: GENERAL MEMBERSHIP

205 The voting general membership of the NRCC shall be constituted and governed as follows:
206

- 207 1. The voting general membership of the NRCC shall be:
208 A. The elected officers of the NVGOP in accordance with these bylaws: Chairman, Vice-
209 Chairman, Secretary, Treasurer, National Committeeman, National
210 Committeewoman, and the appointed members of the Executive Committee.
211 B. The Chairman and highest-ranking Vice-Chairman from each affiliated county
212 Republican Party / Central Committee in Nevada, as recognized by the NVGOP
213 Executive Committee or NRCC. If a county Republican Party / Central Committee has
214 no elected Chairman or Vice-Chairman, a qualified resident of that county may be
215 elected by the NRCC to serve as a voting member until such time that a qualified
216 person has been elected to the vacant position(s).
217 C. The chairman, president, or other presiding officer, however designated, of the
218 Nevada unit of any national Republican organization or auxiliary group with the
219 following stipulations:
220 i. Republican organizations must be officially recognized by the RNC or by the
221 NVGOP at the discretion of the Executive Committee.
222 ii. A copy of the organization's Nevada unit Charter, Bylaws, or other governing
223 documents and proof that the individual is recognized by the parent organization
224 as the Nevada unit's presiding officer must be kept on file with the Secretary to
225 maintain status as a voting member.
226 iii. Changes to the presiding officer of the organization must be filed with the
227 Secretary within 30 days.
228 D. The Chairmen of all standing committees as provided for in these Bylaws.

- 229 E. Such additional members as shall be nominated at the sole discretion of each
230 affiliated county Republican Party / Central Committee in Nevada and elected by
231 majority vote at the NVGOP State Convention as follows:
- 232 i. Three (3) members in addition to the Chairman and Vice-Chairman from each
233 county mentioned above.
 - 234 ii. One (1) additional member from each county for each 2000, or major fraction
235 thereof, registered Republican electors in that county as of the first Monday in
236 January of years in which a State Convention is held.
 - 237 iii. One (1) additional member from each county whose County Commission or
238 other elected county governing body is comprised of a Republican majority as of
239 the first Monday in January of years in which a State Convention is held.
- 240 F. The following Nevada public officials shall be considered ex-officio members. Ex-
241 officio members must attend at least one (1) meeting of the NRCC in person every
242 two (2) years beginning on the date their office is assumed to retain voting
243 privileges. Failure to meet this attendance requirement will result in conversion of
244 their membership status to Honorary until rectified.
- 245 i. Current Republican members of the United States House of Representatives and
246 United States Senate representing Nevada.
 - 247 ii. Current Republican holders of statewide Nevada Constitutional offices.
 - 248 iii. Current Republican members of the Nevada Legislature.
- 249
- 250 2. The elected general members of the NRCC shall serve for a term of four (4) years or until
251 their successors are elected. Their term shall begin upon their election at the NVGOP
252 State Convention held in gubernatorial election years.
253
 - 254 3. Ex-officio and other non-elected members of the NRCC who are granted automatic
255 membership shall serve in their position(s) until such time as they no longer meet the
256 qualification criteria required for their membership as set forth in Article 6, Section 1 of
257 these Bylaws.
258
 - 259 4. Honorary members of the NRCC may be appointed or removed at the discretion of the
260 Chairman or by majority vote of the Executive Committee or NRCC. Honorary members
261 may be provided speaking privileges at meetings of the NRCC but shall not have voting
262 privileges.
263
 - 264 5. All members of the NRCC must be registered Republican Nevada electors when
265 nominated, elected, and at all times while serving.
266

267
268
269
270
271
272
273
274
275
276
277
278
279
280
281
282
283
284
285
286
287
288
289
290
291
292
293
294
295
296
297
298
299
300
301
302
303

ARTICLE 7: ELECTIONS, VACANCIES, AND REMOVALS

ARTICLE 7.1: ELECTIONS

1. Elections for Chairman, Vice-Chairman, Treasurer, and Secretary:
 - A. Regular elections shall be held at the fall/winter regular meeting of the NRCC in the calendar year following a presidential election.
 - B. Elections shall be decided by a majority vote of the voting members of the NRCC in attendance at the meeting in person or by proxy, a quorum being present.
 - C. The Chairman and Vice-Chairman must reside in different counties, with priority being given to the election of the Chairman if a conflict should arise.
2. Elections for National Committeeman and National Committeewoman:
 - A. Regular elections shall be held at the NVGOP State Convention held in calendar years in which a Presidential Election is held.
 - B. Elections shall be decided by a majority vote of the delegates in attendance at the Convention, a quorum being present. Delegates must be present to vote.
 - C. The National Committeeman and National Committeewoman must reside in different counties, with priority being given to the election of the National Committeewoman if a conflict should arise.
3. Elections for membership to the NRCC:
 - A. Regular elections for positions on the NRCC shall be held at the NVGOP State Convention in gubernatorial election years.
 - B. Each affiliated county central committee / county party shall submit a list of qualified nominees for NRCC positions afforded to that county in accordance with Article 6 of these Bylaws to the Secretary at least 45 days prior to the Convention at which regular elections are to be held. Any position for which there is no qualified nominee shall remain vacant until a special election is held to fill that position.
 - C. Elections shall be decided by a majority vote of the delegates in attendance at the Convention, a quorum being present. Delegates must be present to vote.
 - D. Elections for NRCC positions may be conducted by voice vote or by any other method at the discretion of the Chairman.
4. Elections for positions other than those for NRCC membership shall be conducted by secret ballot unless there is only one (1) nominee for the position, in which case the

304 election may be conducted by voice vote or any other method at the discretion of the
305 Chairman.

306

307 5. Should at least one (1) candidate for a particular position fail to receive a simple
308 majority of the votes cast, the winner shall be decided by a runoff vote between the two
309 (2) candidates receiving the highest number of votes.

310

311 6. In the event of a tie vote, the winner shall be decided by the drawing of cards using a
312 standard fifty-two (52) card deck of playing cards, with the high card holder in
313 accordance with standard poker rules being declared the winner.

314

315 ARTICLE 7.2: VACANCIES

316

317 1. Vacancies in the position of Chairman. Should a vacancy occur in the position of
318 Chairman:

319 A. The Vice-Chairman shall act as Chairman pro tempore, exercise all authority of
320 the Chairman position, and perform all associated duties thereof.

321 B. The Vice-Chairman shall call a Special Meeting of the NRCC within 60 days of the
322 vacancy to hold a special election to elect a successor.

323 C. Nominees must be current voting members of the NRCC and must reside in a
324 different county than the Vice-Chairman to qualify.

325

326 2. Vacancies in other elected officer positions. Should a vacancy occur in any elected
327 officer position other than Chairman:

328 A. A successor shall be elected by special election at the next regular or special
329 meeting of the NRCC.

330 B. Should a vacancy occur after the call to a regular meeting has been issued, it
331 shall be deemed in order to insert an election for a successor to the vacant
332 position into the agenda as the first item of business following the final
333 credentials report.

334 C. Nominees must be current voting members of the NRCC to qualify.

335 D. Nominees to fill a vacancy in the position of Vice-Chairman must reside in a
336 different county than the Chairman.

337

338 3. Vacancies within the NRCC. Should a vacancy occur within the elected NRCC
339 membership:

340 A. Successor(s) shall be elected at a special election to be held at the next regular or
341 special meeting of the NRCC.

- 342 B. Nominations for successor(s) to any vacant position(s) shall be submitted to the
343 Secretary by the affiliated county Central Committee / County Party from which
344 the vacancy originated in accordance with that county's bylaws and rules.
- 345 C. Nominees for vacant positions must be elected voting members of their county
346 Central Committee / County Party.
- 347 D. Nominations must be submitted prior to the start of the applicable meeting to
348 be considered. Nominations from the floor will not be permitted.

- 349
- 350 4. Any person elected to fill a vacancy for any position shall serve in that position only for
351 the remainder of the original term unless re-elected at the next regular election for that
352 position.
- 353
- 354 5. Special elections to fill vacancies shall be conducted in the same manner as regular
355 elections for those positions, apart from the provisions specified above.

356

357 ARTICLE 7.3: REMOVAL

358

- 359 1. Each County Central Committee / County Party may recommend removal of any elected
360 NRCC member(s) representing that county for cause in accordance with their own
361 bylaws and rules at any regular or special meeting of the NRCC. Any such
362 recommendations must be submitted to the Secretary prior to the start of the
363 applicable meeting, should include an explanation for the action, and are subject to
364 acceptance by a majority vote of the NRCC members in attendance at that meeting in
365 person or by proxy, a quorum being present. Should any member(s) be removed in this
366 manner, an election in accordance with Article 7.2 of these bylaws to elect their
367 successor(s) shall be deemed in order as the next item of business.
- 368
- 369 2. Removal of an elected officer for cause shall be placed on the agenda of the next regular
370 meeting of the NRCC upon written request of twenty percent (20%) of the total
371 membership of the NRCC, excluding ex-officio members. Any such request must be
372 submitted to the Secretary a minimum of 60 days prior to a scheduled meeting.
- 373
- 374 3. Removal of an elected officer for cause shall require a 2/3 vote of the NRCC members
375 present at the meeting in person or by proxy.
- 376
- 377 4. Removal of an individual elected NRCC member for cause shall be placed on the agenda
378 of the next regular meeting of the NRCC upon written request of ten percent (10%) of
379 the total membership of the NRCC, excluding ex-officio members, or upon the request

380 of a majority of the voting members of the Executive Committee. Any such request must
381 be submitted to the Secretary a minimum of 60 days prior to a scheduled meeting.

382

383 5. Removal of an individual elected NRCC member for cause shall require a majority vote
384 of the NRCC members present, in person or by proxy, at the meeting where such an
385 action is being considered.

386

387

388 ARTICLE 8: MEETINGS

389

390 1. Regular meetings of the NRCC:

391 A. Shall be Held at least two times each year on dates fixed by the Executive
392 Committee, with a goal of one meeting in each six-month period.

393 B. Each regular meeting shall be no more than two days in length.

394 C. At least one regular meeting every two (2) years shall be held in Carson City
395 while the State Legislature is in session.

396 D. Apart from the meeting required to be held in Carson City, meetings shall be
397 rotated to various areas of the state at the discretion of the Chairman and
398 subject to approval by the Executive Committee.

399

400 2. Special meetings of the NRCC:

401 A. Special Meetings of the NRCC may be requested as follows:

402 B. Upon the call of the Chairman.

403 C. Upon written request by a majority of the Executive Committee members.

404 D. Upon written request of one-third (1/3) of the members of the NRCC, excluding
405 ex-officio members.

406 E. Special meetings shall be scheduled within sixty (60) days upon being properly
407 requested in accordance with these Bylaws, and a meeting call shall be issued by
408 the Secretary within fifteen (15) days of such a request.

409 F. The location of any special meeting shall be at the discretion of the Chairman
410 subject to approval by the Executive Committee.

411

412 3. General requirements for regular and special meetings of the NRCC:

413 A. Meeting calls may be sent exclusively by electronic mail (e-mail). In the event an
414 e-mail is determined to be undeliverable, a notice shall be sent by postal mail
415 without delay.

416 B. Members may submit a written request to the Secretary to be sent a meeting
417 call by postal mail in addition to an e-mail notice. Any such request must be

- 418 received at least sixty (60) days prior to a scheduled meeting to become
419 effective.
- 420 C. Meeting calls shall be sent no less than forty-five (45) days prior to any
421 scheduled meeting.
- 422 D. Meeting calls shall include the date, time, and location of the meeting as well as
423 a preliminary agenda of the items of business to be considered.
- 424 E. A quorum of the NRCC members shall be understood to be a majority of the
425 voting members of that body. Ex-officio members shall not be included when
426 calculating quorum.
- 427 F. A quorum of the NRCC members must be present in person or by proxy to
428 conduct any business at a regular or special NRCC meeting.
- 429 G. Once a quorum is established, it shall be recognized until it is brought into
430 question.
- 431 H. No business shall be conducted at any meeting where a quorum is not present
432 except for public announcements, ceremonial items, and discussions held in a
433 Committee of the Whole.

434

435 4. Meetings of the Executive Committee:

- 436 A. Regular meetings of the Executive Committee:
- 437 i. Shall be held a minimum of four (4) times per calendar year, with one (1)
438 meeting being held in each quarter. Additional regular meetings may be
439 held at the discretion of the Chairman.
- 440 ii. Shall require a minimum of a ten (10) day notice.
- 441 B. Special meetings of the Executive Committee:
- 442 i. May be called at the discretion of the Chairman.
- 443 ii. Must be called upon the written request of a majority of the voting
444 members of the Executive Committee.
- 445 iii. Shall require a minimum of five (5) days notice, unless a bona fide
446 emergency does not allow for such notice and a majority of the voting
447 members of the Executive Committee approve such an exemption.
- 448 iv. The notice of any special meeting must contain all matters to be
449 considered at that meeting. No matters other than those contained in the
450 notice may be considered.
- 451 C. Notices for regular and special meetings of the Executive Committee may be
452 sent by electronic mail (e-mail).
- 453 D. Meetings of the Executive Committee may be held in person or remotely by
454 teleconference, videoconference, or in any other similar manner. All rules for

- 455 conducting a meeting in person, including determination of a quorum, shall
456 apply to any meetings held remotely.
- 457 E. A quorum of the Executive Committee shall be understood to be a majority of
458 the voting members of the Committee present in person, remotely, or by proxy.
459 A quorum must be established for any business to be considered.
- 460 F. Consideration of any personnel matters by the Executive Committee shall be
461 conducted in executive session.
- 462 G. No business shall be conducted at any meeting where a quorum is not present
463 except for public announcements, ceremonial items, and discussions held in a
464 Committee of the Whole.

465
466

467 ARTICLE 9: COMMITTEES

468

469 ARTICLE 9.1: COMMITTEE RULES AND REQUIREMENTS

470

- 471 1. The Chairman of all standing committees shall be nominated by the NVGOP Chairman
472 and confirmed by the Executive Committee.
- 473 2. Members of each standing committee shall be appointed by the committee Chairman,
474 subject to confirmation by the Executive Committee. Committee members shall serve at
475 the pleasure of the committee Chairman.
- 476 3. The NVGOP Chairman may, at their discretion, create special committees as needed
477 with the approval of the Executive Committee to conduct tasks not already assigned to a
478 standing committee. The NVGOP Chairman and NVGOP Vice-Chairman shall serve as
479 voting members of any such special committee.
- 480 4. The Chairman and members of any special committees shall be appointed by the
481 NVGOP Chairman with the confirmation of the Executive Committee.
- 482 5. The Chairman and all members of all standing and special committees must be
483 registered Nevada Republican electors when appointed and at all times while serving.
- 484 6. Meetings of standing or special committees may be held either in person or remotely by
485 teleconference, videoconference, or in any other similar manner at the discretion of the
486 Committee Chairman. All rules for conducting a meeting in person, including
487 determination of a quorum, shall apply to any meetings held remotely.
- 488 7. A quorum of any standing or special committee shall be understood to be a majority of
489 the members of the Committee, present in person or remotely. A quorum must be
490 established for any business to be considered.

491

492 ARTICLE 9.2: STANDING COMMITTEES, DESCRIPTIONS, AND RESPONSIBILITIES

493
494
495
496
497
498
499
500
501
502
503
504
505
506
507
508
509
510
511
512
513
514
515
516
517
518
519
520
521
522
523
524
525
526
527
528

1. Budget Committee. The Budget Committee:
 - A. Shall consist of its Chairman, the NVGOP Treasurer, one (1) member from Clark County, one (1) member from Washoe County, and one (1) member from the remaining counties combined.
 - B. Shall conduct semi-annual budget reviews for the members of the NRCC.
 - C. Shall prepare a biennial budget at the beginning of each even-numbered calendar year to be presented to the NRCC for approval at the first regular NRCC meeting of that year.

2. Bylaws Committee. The Bylaws Committee:
 - A. Shall consist of its appointed Chairman, two (2) members from Clark County, two (2) members from Washoe County, and two (2) members from the remaining counties combined.
 - B. Shall meet at least once per year to review these Bylaws and the Nevada Republican Party Standing Rules, and to consider any amendments that have been proposed.
 - C. Shall review the bylaws and rules of each county central committee / county party to ensure they are not in conflict with these Bylaws, the Nevada Republican Party Standing Rules, or the Rules of the RNC.
 - D. Upon request, may assist county central committees / county parties in reviewing and revising their bylaws and rules.

3. Finance Committee. The Finance Committee:
 - A. Shall consist of its appointed Chairman, the National Committeeman, The National Committeewoman, two (2) members from Clark County, two (2) members from Washoe County, and two (2) members from the remaining counties combined.
 - B. Shall oversee all fundraising programs of the NVGOP.

4. Nominating and Candidate Recruitment Committee. The Nominating and Candidate Recruitment Committee:
 - A. Shall consist of its appointed Chairman, the National Committeeman, The National Committeewoman, five (5) members from Clark County, four (4) members from Washoe County, and three (3) members from the remaining counties combined.

- 529 B. Shall be responsible for the recruitment and development of candidates for
530 statewide public office, and may provide assistance, upon request, to any county
531 recruitment and development efforts.
- 532 C. Shall maintain a record of all nominations for NVGOP officer positions and
533 determine the eligibility of any candidates for those positions.
- 534
- 535 5. The Personnel Committee. The Personnel Committee:
- 536 A. Shall consist of the NVGOP Chairman, who will serve as the Committee
537 Chairman, the NVGOP Vice-Chairman, the NVGOP Treasurer, the NVGOP
538 Secretary, and the Chairmen of the Budget and Finance Committees.
- 539 B. Shall develop and write job descriptions for the NVGOP Executive Director, office
540 manager / secretary, and any additional staff positions that may be
541 recommended by the Chairman or Executive Committee.
- 542 C. Shall review all personnel matters and determine whether those matters should
543 be brought before the Executive Committee or the NRCC.
- 544
- 545 6. The Credentials Committee. The Credentials Committee:
- 546 A. Shall consist of its Chairman, the NVGOP Secretary, one (1) member from Clark
547 County, one (1) member from Washoe County, and one (1) member from the
548 remaining counties combined. Additional members may be appointed if needed
549 with the approval of the Executive Committee.
- 550 B. Shall verify the identity and eligibility of all members attending any meeting of
551 the NRCC in person or by proxy.
- 552 C. Shall create and present a credentials report at that meeting for approval by the
553 NRCC members.
- 554
- 555

556 ARTICLE 10: VOTING AND PROXIES

557

- 558 1. All voting members who are present at a meeting of the NRCC or Executive Committee
559 in person or by proxy shall have the right to vote on all matters coming before that body
560 unless the proxy expressly states otherwise in writing.
- 561
- 562 2. Any voting member of the NRCC may assign a proxy for any regular or special meeting of
563 the NRCC. A proxy form shall be included with the call to the meeting sent to each
564 member. The proxy form for each meeting shall have a unique identifier.
- 565
- 566 3. Proxy forms must be properly filled out and must include the member's signature, the

567 date or date and time when signed, and must designate a proxy holder by name or
568 assign the proxy to “bearer” to be deemed valid and complete.

569

570 4. At each meeting, the Chairman shall instruct the Credentials Committee to examine all
571 proxy forms, validate the signatures, and declare the names of those voting by proxy.
572 Challenges to proxies shall be the first item of business.

573

574 5. No person shall exercise more than two (2) proxies.

575

576 6. The following rules shall govern to whom proxies may be assigned:

577 A. Current Nevada Constitutional Officers, Members of Congress representing Nevada,
578 and Officers of the NVGOP may assign their proxy to any registered Republican
579 Nevada elector.

580 B. Members of the Nevada Legislature may assign their proxy to any other Republican
581 State Legislator or to any registered Republican Nevada elector residing within their
582 legislative district.

583 C. Standing Committee Chairmen may assign their proxy to any other current member
584 of the NRCC.

585 D. Members representing Republican organizations may assign their proxy only to a
586 registered Republican Nevada elector who is also a member of that organization.

587 E. All other members of the NRCC may assign their proxy to any registered Republican
588 Nevada elector that resides in the same county as that member.

589

590

591 ARTICLE 11: AFFILIATED COUNTY REPUBLICAN PARTIES

592

593 ARTICLE 11.1: AFFILIATED COUNTY REPUBLICAN PARTY REQUIREMENTS

594 The NVGOP shall recognize an affiliated County Republican Party in each of the various counties
595 of Nevada. Each affiliated County Party:

596

597 1. May adopt their own bylaws and rules, which shall not conflict with the Rules of the
598 Republican National Committee, these Bylaws, the NVGOP Standing Rules, or any
599 applicable local, state, or federal laws or statutes. Upon adoption or amendment, a copy
600 of such bylaws and rules must be filed with the NVGOP Secretary who shall note their
601 filing in the minutes of the next NRCC meeting and shall deliver them to the Chairman of
602 the Standing Committee on Bylaws for review.

603 2. Shall provide the NVGOP Secretary a list of its elected officers immediately following
604 their election, including their mailing address, telephone number, and e-mail address, if

- 605 available.
- 606 3. Shall conduct Precinct Meetings and County Conventions as directed by the Executive
- 607 Committee or NRCC in accordance with the NVGOP Bylaws and Standing Rules.
- 608

609 ARTICLE 11.2: PRECINCT MEETINGS AND COUNTY CONVENTIONS

610

- 611 1. Each County Party shall hold a Precinct Meeting of the registered Republican voters in
- 612 each voting precinct within their county to be held on a date set by the NVGOP
- 613 Executive Committee at which:
- 614 A. Delegates to a County Convention shall be elected in accordance with the
- 615 NVGOP Bylaws and Standing Rules in conjunction with any applicable County
- 616 Party bylaws and rules.
- 617 B. Participation shall be open to all registered Republican voters within a given
- 618 voting precinct.
- 619 C. In Presidential Election years, a Presidential preference poll shall be conducted in
- 620 accordance with the NVGOP Bylaws and Standing Rules.
- 621 2. Each County Party shall convene a County Convention following their Precinct Meeting
- 622 by a date set by the NVGOP Executive Committee at which:
- 623 A. Delegates to the NVGOP State Convention shall be elected in accordance with
- 624 the NVGOP Bylaws and Standing Rules in conjunction with any applicable County
- 625 Party bylaws and rules.
- 626 B. Members of a County Party central committee shall be elected.
- 627 C. Nominations for elected positions on the NRCC for that County Party may be
- 628 held, unless otherwise specified by that County Party's bylaws, and must be
- 629 submitted to the NRCC Secretary no later than fourteen (14) calendar days prior
- 630 to the NVGOP State Convention.
- 631 D. A County Party platform may be adopted, if desired.
- 632 E. Other such actions pertaining to the affairs of their County Party may also be
- 633 considered as that County Party deems proper.
- 634
- 635

636 ARTICLE 12: STATE CONVENTIONS

637

- 638 1. The NVGOP shall convene a regularly scheduled State Convention in each year in which
- 639 a statewide general election is to be held in accordance with these Bylaws and the
- 640 NVGOP Standing Rules.
- 641 2. Delegates to the State Convention shall be elected by the County Convention of each
- 642 affiliated County Party. Their election shall be certified to the NVGOP Secretary by the

643 County Convention Chairman and Secretary from that county.

644

645

646 ARTICLE 13: AMENDMENT OF BYLAW

647

648 Section 1. These Bylaws may be amended or revised by a majority vote of the delegates
649 at any State Convention; or by a two-thirds vote of the members present, in person or by proxy,
650 at any meeting of the NRCC, a quorum being present, where notice of the proposed
651 amendments was included in the call of the meeting and mailed at least thirty days prior to the
652 meeting; excepting there from: amendments shall be adopted to change any language of this
653 Article 13 or of Article 3, DUTIES AND HEADQUARTERS, only by a session of a State Convention,
654 a quorum present, where notice of the exact language to be adopted was distributed to every
655 delegate of the preceding Presidential election year state convention prior to the adoption of
656 the preliminary credentials report of that prior Presidential election year state convention, and
657 further providing that properly noticed amendments proposed to change the language of this
658 Article 13 or Article 3, must be adopted only as proposed without any additions or deletions,
659 which additions or deletions, if made by the convention considering such amendment acts to
660 totally void the entire amendment.

661

662

663 ARTICLE 14: PARLIAMENTARY PROVISIONS

664

665 1. Standing Rules adopted under the authority of these Bylaws may be adopted on a
666 temporary basis by the Executive Committee, subject to approval of a corresponding
667 rule to be considered by the NRCC at the next regular NRCC meeting or at a special
668 meeting called for that purpose. Any such rules shall automatically expire once
669 considered if not approved by the NRCC.

670

671 2. Any rules adopted under authority of these Bylaws shall be adopted by the NRCC in
672 plenary session and shall not be adopted without the same notice required as in the
673 adoption of bylaws.

674

675 3. The Standing Committee on Bylaws shall be required to carry out the same duties in
676 relation to rules as it does to bylaws and shall also be required to advise the central
677 committee of any potential conflicts.

678

679 4. Where not superseded by the Rules of the Republican National Committee, these
680 Bylaws, the NVGOP Standing Rules, or the Nevada Revised Statutes not in conflict with

681 the foregoing, the latest revision which has been in publication for at least two years of
682 ROBERT’S RULES OF ORDER NEWLY REVISED, shall govern all proceedings set forth
683 herein.

684
685

686 ARTICLE 15: ELECTION LAWS

687

688 1. No officer, agent, or member of the NRCC is authorized to take any action in violation of
689 any federal, state, or local election law or regulation. Nor shall any officer, agent, or
690 member of the NRCC be authorized to take any action in violation of the order entered
691 in Case No. A269546, Department IX, Eighth Judicial District Court, Clark County,
692 Nevada.

693

694 2. Violation of this provision shall result in a vote for removal of that officer or NRCC
695 member at the next regular NRCC meeting in accordance with the provisions of Article
696 7.3 of these Bylaws excluding any petition or signature requirements that would
697 otherwise be needed to request such an action.

698

699

700 ARTICLE 16: SUPPORT OF CERTAIN CANDIDATES

701

702 1. The Nevada Republican Party shall neither recognize nor support any candidate for
703 public office who has been convicted of a felony or, while serving in a public office was
704 impeached and convicted or removed from office for any reason, unless the NRCC or
705 NVGOP State Convention shall waive this rule by a two-thirds (2/3) vote of the members
706 or delegates present.

707

708

709

710 HISTORY OF AMENDMENTS

711

712 1-29-2022 – Adopted as revised by the members of the Nevada Republican Central Committee
713 9-23-2023 - B-2023-1 - Article 6, Section 2 and Article 7, Section 3(A) amended by the general
714 membership of the NRCC

715

716

717

718

719 HISTORY OF AMENDMENTS PRIOR TO 2022 REVISION (1992 – 2015)
720
721 Bylaws amended by NRCC in convention, May 1992
722 Bylaws updated and printed February 1993
723 Bylaws submitted for corrections and approved by NRCC June 1993
724 Bylaws reprinted October 1993
725 Bylaws Article 3 Section 3 amended by NRCC October 1993
726 Bylaws reprinted May 1994
727 Bylaws Article 3 Section 1.C; Article 5 Section 2.C; Article 6 Section 1.C, Sections 2 A.4, 2.D.10,
728 2.D.11, 2.F.1,2,3,4, & 5; 2.H.1,2,3,&4; Article 11 Section 1.B; Article 12 Title and Sections 1,2,3
729 & 4; Article 14 Section 1 amended by NRCC in convention, May 1994
730 Bylaws reprinted September 1994
731 Bylaws Article 12 added new Section 5; Article 4 Section 1.A; Article 6 Section 1.B amended by
732 NRCC May 2, 1996 reprinted May 2, 1996.
733 Bylaws Article 6 Section 2.D added paragraph 12 May 3, 1996 State Convention.
734 Bylaws Article 3 Section 2, amended; Article 3 added new Section 4. Article 4, Section 1.b
735 amended; Article 4, Section 3, amended. Article 5, Section 3 corrected; Article 6, Section 3.a
736 amended. Article 9, Section 2 amended. Article 10, Section 6 corrected, amended and
737 removed from Article 10 and reassigned to Article 3 Section 2; Article 11, Section 1.a
738 amended; Article 13 amended, April 24, 1998 State Convention.
739 Bylaws reprinted July 1998.
740 Bylaws Article 4, Section 1.a amended May 27, 2000.
741 Bylaws reprinted November 2000.
742 Bylaws Article 6, Section 1. amended April 17, 2001, Central Committee Meeting.
743 Bylaws Article 5, Section 1, G. Amended May 18, 2002, State Convention.
744 Bylaws Article 6, Section 2, C, D. Amended May 18, 2002, State Convention.
745 Bylaws Article 8, Section 1, Amended March 2, 2003, Central Committee Meeting
746 Bylaws Article 10, Section 3, Amended March 2, 2003, Central Committee Meeting
747 Bylaws Article 3, Section 4, Amended May 1, 2004, State Convention
748 Bylaws Article 5, Section 2, D Amended May 1, 2004, State Convention
749 Bylaws Article 6, Section 2, D(5),G, Amended May 1, 2004, State Convention
750 Bylaws Article 4, Section 1, B Amended April 2, 2005, Central Committee Meeting
751 Bylaws Article 4, Section 3, Amended April 2, 2005, Central Committee Meeting
752 Bylaws Article 12, Section 3, Amended April 2, 2005, Central Committee Meeting
753 Bylaws Article 16, Section 1, Amended May 20, 2006, State Convention
754 Bylaws Article 4, Section 2B, amended; Article 6, Sections 1A, 1C, 2A4, 2B2, 2D5, 2D12, 4B, 4C,
755 4D, amended; Article 7, Section 1, amended, Section 2, deleted; Article 8, Sections 2, 2C, 4B,
756 4B2, 9, amended; Article 9, Sections 1, 2, amended; Article 10, Section 2, amended; Article 11

757 Section 2D, deleted, Section 3C, added; Article 13, Title, Section 1, amended; Article 15,
758 Section 1, amended; Article 16, Section 1, amended, April 26, 2008 State Convention.
759 Bylaws Article 5, Section 1, Amended December 13, 2008, Central Committee Meeting
760 Bylaws Sections 4 and 5 amended; Article 5, Section 1 amended; Article 6, Sections 1A, 2B2,
761 2C3, 2D3, 2D4, 2D5a and 2G3 amended; Article 7, Section 1 amended; Article 8, Section 2
762 amended; Article 9, Section 2 amended; Article 10, Section 5A amended; Article 11, Sections
763 3B1 and 3B2 amended; Article 12, Section 1 amended, November 17, 2012 Central Committee
764 Meeting. Article 4, § 1, ¶ B amended; §§ 3 & 5 amended. Article 5, § 1, ¶ B amended; § 2
765 amended. Article 6, § 1, ¶¶ B & C amended; § 2, ¶ A, Sub ¶ 4 amended, ¶ F
766 amended, ¶ G, Sub ¶ 1 amended; Article 11, §, ¶ B amended. August 2, 2014
767 Central Committee Meeting.
768 Article 15, § ,amended. March 28, 2015 Central Committee Meeting.